
 

 

 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
NOVEMBER 7, 2017                                                              REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 

   REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 

Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  October 17, 2017  CIOFFI  
                                                       

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  –   Executive Committee – November 2, 2017  CIOFFI                     
  

5. PUBLIC INPUT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public may speak on any item listed 
on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board 
is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  

6. ITEMS FOR ACTION   
A. Request Authorization to Participate/2017-2018 USGS Cooperative Water   KRAUSE 

Resources Program 
B. Request Designation of Delegate to ACWA General Session Membership Meeting  KRAUSE 
C. Request Authorization to Increase Funding of Phase I (Sites Reservoir Project)  KRAUSE  

 

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – October 19, 2017  RIDDELL 
B. Director’s Report on NWRA Groundwater Taskforce Meeting  CIOFFI 
C. Legislative Report  REEB 

  

8. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 B. Activities 
 

9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
     Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
    Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
    Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 

  

11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

12. ADJOURN 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with 
a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be 
obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



       8851 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/17/17 

MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

October 17, 2017 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
          Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
Absent: Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
    
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
    

Attendance 

17944.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
17945.  President Cioffi called for approval of the October 3, 2017 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Director 
Ewing, the minutes were approved as written (Vice President Stuart absent).  
 
17946.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause reminded everyone of the following events: 1) 
Blood Drive today taking place in the Agency parking lot from  9:00 a.m. to 
2:00 p.m.; and 2) Annual Palm Springs Aerial Tram Road Challenge on 
Saturday, October 28; volunteers are needed, please contact Outreach and 
Conservation Manager Metzger. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted that the Agency’s update to the front 
landscape is currently underway.  
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 10/03/17 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
Upcoming Events: 
10/17 Blood Drive 
10/28 Annual PS Tram 
Road Challenge 
 
 
 
 
 
Landscape Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 



       8852 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/17/17 

  Mr. Krause stated on October 3 at approximately 3:30 p.m., 
Construction personnel responded to a hit fire hydrant on Primavera Dr. This 
was an older style hydrant that broke on the hydrant horizontal piping run. 
The hydrant was taken out of service. The water loss was from a 3/4 inch 
hole that ran for approximately 10 minutes. 
 
  Mr. Krause announced that a recruitment for an Equipment 
Operator opened on October 10. Interested persons may obtain an application 
and job description on the Agency’s website at www.dwa.org/careers. The 
first review of applications will be on October 25 and the recruitment will 
close when sufficient qualified applications are received. 
 
  Mr. Krause provided a report for the Facilities & Safety 
department: Carpet replacement was completed on October 7 for the areas of 
the Management hallway, General Manager’s office, Administrative 
Assistants area, Facilities & Safety office, and the Lab Technician’s office.  
       
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted the current system 
leak data, and meetings and activities he participated in during the past 
several weeks. 
    
17947.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
   
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period.  
 
17948.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of September 2017. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating Fund 
received $3,149,073 in Water Sales Revenue, $135,529 in Reclamation Sales 
Revenue and $156,985 in Meter Sales and Services. Included in the Accounts 
Receivable/Other category was $42,431 from CPV (Final payment 16/17 
controller program), $11,691 Round 1 grant money (Turf buy back) and 
$31,480 City of Palm Springs lease payment. $1,405,717 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 1% over budget, Year-to-
date Total Revenues are 4% over budget and Year-to-date Total Expenses 
are 21% under budget. There were 22,468 active services as of September 30 
compared to August 31. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$607,867 was received in Property Tax Revenue, $2,810 was received in 
Groundwater Assessments from private pumpers, $61,536 was received in 
Whitewater Hydro Sales from SCE (August 2017) and $1,728,371 was paid 
out in State Water Project Charges (YTD SWP charges $5,895,132). 
   
 
   

GM Report 
(Cont.) 
Hit Fire Hydrant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recruitment – 
Equipment Operator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Facilities & Safety 
Update 
 
 
 
 
 
System Leak Data,  
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (September) 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8853 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/17/17 

  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$17,655 was received in Sewer Capacity Charges ($15,720 Jones Cree 
Ventures and $1,935 Sewer Contracts). There are a total of 52 contracts, with 
total delinquents of 14 (27%). 
   
17949.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for Approval of Letter of Support for San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) to act as lead applicant for planning grant for 
the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that the California Department of Water 
Resources has established a Sustainable Groundwater Planning (SGWP) 
grant program. The program provides funds for projects that develop and 
implement sustainable groundwater planning; it consists of two eligible 
project type categories; Category 1 (Severely Disadvantaged Communities 
projects) and Category 2 (Groundwater Sustainability plans). 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated that SGPWA has 
agreed to act as the lead applicant for this grant and the application will be 
submitted for both categories. The grant could fund up to $2 million for 
sustainable groundwater planning for the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin. 
Desert Water Agency’s boundary lies over a portion of this Subbasin. 
Support from all entities with a stake in the subbasin is critical to successfully 
obtaining grant funds. Staff recommends submitting a letter on behalf of the 
Agency, supporting SGPWA as the lead applicant for the grant. 
 
  Director Ewing requested that although President Cioffi will 
sign the letter; indicate that the Agency’s Board has reviewed it. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve the support letter 
with the above-mentioned amendment. Director Oygar seconded the motion 
as amended. The motion carried unanimously (Vice President Stuart absent). 
 
17950.  President Cioffi called upon Finance Director Krieger to 
present staff’s request for Adoption of Resolution No. 1173 Updating Signers 
for Stifel Investments. 
 
  Mr. Krieger stated the Agency established an account with 
Stifel in 2013. Due to the recent retirement of Controller Lee Lahtinen, it is 
necessary to update the signers on the account. As noted within the 
resolution, Board President Cioffi, General Manager Krause, Assistant 
General Manager Johnson, Finance Director Krieger and Accounting 
Supervisor Saenz will be the authorized signers on the account. Changes with 
regard to signers require an update to the existing resolution. Staff 
recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1173. Upon adoption, staff will send 
a certified copy to Stifel Investments. 
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
Request Auth. Submit 
Support Letter San 
Gorgonio Pass GW 
Subbasin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
Resolution No. 1173 
Updating Authorized 
Signers for Stifel 
Investments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8854 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/17/17 

  Director Oygar made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1173. 
Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer seconded the motion. The motion carried 
unanimously (Vice President Stuart absent). 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1173 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY UPDATING 
AUTHORIZED SIGNERS FOR STIFEL INVESTMENTS 

 
17951.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the September water reduction figures. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 10.3% reduction in potable water production during September 
2017 compared to the same month in 2013. He noted the cumulative savings 
June 2016 through current is 19%. He also noted the amount of fresh water 
outflow to the ocean was 746,062.8-acre feet.  
 
17952.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the Customer billing process. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted this item is a follow up to the October 3 
Board meeting when President Cioffi asked about the customer billing 
process and late fees. He explained that on July 1, 2017 the Agency 
implemented late fees and modified its billing collection process in order to 
recover costs from customers with delinquent accounts. The following is the 
current billing process: 1) Water bill #1 sent with previous month’s 
consumption (30 days) and monthly service fee 2) Water bill #2 is sent with 
previous month consumption and monthly service fee. If water bill #1 is not 
paid, the balance is carried over, a late is applied and a shutoff notice is 
included. The shutoff notice contains Agency customer assistance program 
information and payment plan information. The late fee may be waived one 
time upon first request for customers in good standing (2 years of on-time 
payments). A water shutoff date is specified if previous bill has not been paid 
3) Customers who are not shut off regularly (several months per year) will 
receive a door tag with a shutoff notice 24 or 48 hours (depending on billing 
address) prior to shutoff 4) Once service is turned off, there is a $70 reconnect 
fee ($150 after hours) 5) Water service will be turned back on once the 
customer has paid in full, including reconnect fee, or the customer has signed 
a payment plan contract. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause stated that staff works with 
customers in varying circumstances to keep water service on and to have 
service reestablished due to non-payment. There are currently seven 
customers on payment plans. In addition to payment plans, we offer 
customers who are pending shutoffs, payment flexibility. Customers work 
with various staff and are able to speak to supervisors, if needed to get 
accommodation for their circumstances. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1173 Updating 
Auth. Signers for Stifel 
Investments  
 
Resolution No. 1173 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
September Water 
Reduction  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customer Billing 
Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8855 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/17/17 

  In response to Director Ewing, Mr. Krieger stated it is too soon 
to determine whether there are changes in customer’s payment patterns. 
 
17953.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the California WaterFix Update. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated in the past two weeks, several Southern 
California water agencies and one South Bay area water agency have voted 
to support the California WaterFix. Many Southern California water agencies 
have elected not to take action but have not come out in opposition of the 
project. There are still many issues to be determined such as the participation 
of the Central Valley Project Contractors, as well as some State Water Project 
Contractors. Finance Director Krieger is examining the finance costs and 
options and their various effects on our State Water Project costs. Staff 
recommends that a Board workshop be scheduled in the near future to review 
the MWD white paper, financing options and rate impacts. 
  
17954.  Director Ewing noted that he, President Cioffi and Outreach 
and Conservation Manager Metzger participated in Coffee with DWA last 
week. 
 
17955.   At 8:45 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; and (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District 
vs. Desert Water Agency. 
 
17956.  At 9:59 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17957.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:00 a.m. 
 
 
                                           ____________________________________ 

                                    James Cioffi, President                                  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
Customer Billing 
Process 
 
California WaterFix 
Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors Comments 
 
Coffee with DWA 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C.  Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

NOVEMBER 7, 2017 
 

  
    
 

8” Araby Pipeline Damage 
 
On Friday, October 20, at approximately 11:00 a.m., a large boulder, with an estimated weight of 2 
tons, dislodged from the cliff above the Araby pipeline and slid into the pipeline, causing extensive 
damage. The event occurred approximately 300 feet from the Araby booster pump building, on 
terrain that was steep and boulder strewn. This pipeline is the only delivery source to the Southridge 
Zone. 

A three-point strategy was developed: temporarily repair the pipe, if possible; determine a 
temporary back-up supply connection/route; truck water until a pumped supply was available. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Photo 1: The pipeline after the boulder struck it. The 
boulder is visible at the bend in the pipe. 

Photo 2: The boulder that damaged the pipe. 



 

 

Araby Pipeline 
(Cont.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Photo 3:  The damage to the pipe at the thrust block. 

Photo 4: The temporary pipe in place 



Araby Pipeline 
(Cont.) 
 

The geographic location of the pipe break, and the extensive damage to the pipe limited the repair 
options. The location of the break on the pipe was so close to an elbow such that the use of a repair 
coupling was not possible. Welding a temporary spool in place was considered; however, after 
assessing the welding capabilities, it was determined that the Agency does not possess welding 
leads long enough to reach the break location. After determining that a temporary repair was not 
possible, Agency personnel focused on a temporary back-up supply connection. 

Three back-up supply connections and routes were evaluated: 

 An 1,800-foot connection from a hydrant on East Palm Canyon to a hydrant on Southridge 
Drive that would require the diesel booster pump to lift the water. 

  A 600-foot connection from a hydrant on Rim Road to hydrant on Southridge Road up a 
canyon that would require the diesel booster pump to lift the water. 

 An 800-foot connection from the Southridge Reservoirs over the cliff to the Araby Booster 
along the existing Araby pipeline route that would allow the Araby Booster to pump the water. 

It was decided that the 800-foot connection, over the cliff, between the Southridge Reservoirs and 
the Araby Booster was the most viable of the three. Construction department personnel secured 
400 PSI rated, double lined, NSF approved fire hose over the cliff, and connected the fire hose to 
the booster and reservoir. Two backflows were installed, one mid-hose and one at the reservoir to 
prevent any back-siphonage in the event of a hose break. 

While crews installed the fire hose, Construction personnel hauled two loads of water to the 
Southridge Reservoirs utilizing the Agency’s 2,000-gallon water truck. 

At approximately 6:00 PM, Operation Department personnel energized the booster, sending water 
to the Southridge Reservoirs through the fire hose at 100 GPM. As a precaution, Operation 
personnel also added liquid chlorine to the Southridge Reservoirs for disinfection purposes.   

Customers within the Southridge Zone remained in service during the entire event; though a 
message was conveyed to the gate guard at Southridge to ask residents to conserve, if possible.  
To date, the Southridge Reservoirs are being served by the fire house until repairs can be made to 
the damaged pipeline. Staff is working with a local contractor to expedite the repairs to this crucial 
pipeline. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

8” Sarah Street Emergency Pipeline Replacement 

On October 23, 2017, DWA crews began installing approximately 420 L.F. of new 8” ductile iron 
water main along Sarah Street, between Agua Caliente Trail and Crossley Road, in Cathedral City.  
This main will replace the existing 6” steel main that was installed in 1956.  All work, including new 
service lines, disinfection, and testing is anticipated to take 2-3 weeks to complete.  The estimated 
cost for labor and materials is $100,000. 

The existing main has had 44 leaks over the last 4 years, and 26 in less than a year. The main has 
deteriorated to the point where repair clamps are crushing the main, and it was no longer possible 
to repair the leaking section. It was necessary to perform the replacement as soon as possible, due 
to the rapid deterioration of the pipe. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Palm Springs North Reservoir No. 2 Recoat Project 

The 12MG reservoir will be recoated under the 2017/2018 Potable Water Reservoir Maintenance 
Request for Proposals (RFP).  It was anticipated that the total cost to recoat Palm Springs North 
Reservoir No. 2 would be $2,100,000, which was budgeted for under reservoir maintenance in the 
2017/2018 annual budget.  The project has been awarded to J. Colon Coatings Inc. for $1,908,500; 
J. Colon Coatings Inc. was the contractor that previously recoated the reservoir in 1996. 
 
The Agency will empty the reservoir prior to being handed over to the contractor, on November 7, 
2017, by pumping the upper 35 feet of reservoir containing 10.5 million gallons to the Chino Zone 
using the Chino Boosters.  The bottom 5 feet of the reservoir containing 1.5 million gallons was 
below the pumping level of the booster inlet. Some of that water will be sent to an onsite retention 
basin, but an agreement was made with the City of Palm Springs to divert the majority of the lower 
5 feet of water to the Wastewater Treatment Plant for re-use at the Agency’s Water Reclamation 
Facility. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Palm Springs Reservoir No. 2.  Reservoir is 232 feet in diameter and 40 feet tall (approximately ½ is buried 
belowground).  When full, the reservoir holds 12 million gallons of water. 



 

 

2018 Non-Potable Water Filter Maintenance Project 

The Water Reclamation Facility (Rec Plant) Non-Potable Filters 4, 5, and 6 will be rehabilitated 
under the 2018 Non-Potable Water Filter Request for Proposals (RFP). It was anticipated that the 
total cost to rehab filters 4, 5, and 6 would be $766,000, which was budgeted for under 
maintenance of filters in the 2017/2018 annual budget.  The project has been awarded to ERS 
Industrial Services, Inc (ERS) for $457,527. ERS recently completed similar work on filters 1, 2, 3. 
The project is anticipated to begin November 27, 2017. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DWA Water Reclamation Facility (Rec Plant) Non-Potable Filters. 



 
The City of Palm Springs has been working with the Agency on relocating an existing DWA pipeline 
and water services to the train station and Granite Construction property located on Indian Canyon. 
The relocation is required due to the Bridge Expansion Project that will change the existing grade 
of the street by several feet. Currently, we are in the Plan Check phase of the project. The relocation 
work includes approximately 1,000 L.F. of 8” main and five 2” services (see Exh. A & Project P 
map). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







STREET NAME QUARTER SECTION NUMBER OF LEAKS

FRANCIS RD 4402NW 6

CHIA RD 4411NW 3

RAMON RD 4519NW 2

MERITO PL 4410SE 2

CAMINO NORTE (8") 4410NE 1

BROADMOOR DR 4529NW 1

SARAH ST 4517SW 1

COTTONWOOD RD 4411NW 1

RACQUET CLUB RD 4402NW 1

STARR RD 4402NW 1

AVENIDA PALOS VERDES 4411SW 1

AVENIDA CABALLEROS (20") 4411NW 1

VIA MIRALESTE 4411NW 1

BARISTO RD 4415SE 1

HERMOSA RD 4423NE 1

TERRY LN 4413NW 1

RAMON RD 4424NE 1

CALLE SAN ANTONIO 4519NE 1

MOUNTAIN VIEW PL 4410SE 1

MISSION RD 4410SE 1

PLAIMOR AVE 4413NE 1

CALLE MARCUS 4411NE 1

VIA SALIDA 4423SW 1

TOTAL LEAKS IN SYSTEM: 32

* Streets highlighted in blue are being replaced as part of the

2016/2017 Replacement Pipeline Project

* Streets highlighted in green are included as part of the

proposed list of streets for the 2017/2018 Replacement

Pipeline Project

SYSTEM LEAK DATA

(PERIOD BEGINNING OCTOBER 11, 2017 THRU OCTOBER 30, 2017)





 

 

 
Facilities & Safety Update            
 
Facilities & Safety Officer Gonzalez has been working with Down to Earth Landscaping to replace 
and refresh our desert scape throughout the exterior of the Agency.  The project consisted of 
removing the old thatch from the areas that were once covered with grass.  A weed control barrier 
was then spread over the surface of the bare soil in order to minimize the potential of anything 
growing back.  75,000 lbs. of 3/4” red rock were spread over the designated areas.  Carla Harrower 
from Down to Earth Landscaping coordinated all group preparation, delivery of materials and her 
landscaping crew performed all the labor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Facilities & Safety Update            
 
On October 26th and 27th, DWA conducted six, two – hour classes training Agency employees on 
Crisis Communications.  The Agency contracted Philip Ball, President and Founder of Situational 
Awareness Institute (S.A.I.) to facilitate the sessions.  The purpose of this training is to standardize 
how the Agency’s employees respond to crisis situations when dealing with customers, vendors, 
etc., on the telephone, and in person.  The training consisted of an interactive blend of lecture and 
discussion, audio and visual multimedia, role playing, and some peer discussion and evaluation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

Tram Road Challenge 
 
On Saturday, October 28, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer and five DWA staff members helped pass 
out water bottle and cups to approximately 1200 participants of the Tram Road Challenge benefiting 
United Way of the Desert. A number of employees also helped fill bottles at the Agency the day 
before.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Late Fees Quarterly Update 
 
 

August 2017 $46,775 
September 2017 $34,700 
October 2017 $35,475 
Total: $116,950.00 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
10/18/17 SWC Delta Committee Meeting Sacramento 
10/1917 SWC Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
10/19/17 SFCWA Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
10/19/17 SWC Sites Reservoir Participant Meeting Sacramento 
10/20/17 MSWD/DWA/CVWD Lawsuit Mediation BBK/Riverside 
10/23/17 DWA I.S./Staff/Snow Creek Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
10/24/17 SGP GSA DWR Grant Solicitation Proposals Conf. Call 
10/26/17 Whitewater Spreading Basin BLM Permit Conf. Call 
10/26/17 Active Shooter-Crisis Communication Training DWA 
10/27/17 Section 14 Tribal Grant of Right of Way Meeting ACBCI Admin. 
10/29/17 DWA I.S./Staff/Snow Creek Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
10/30/17 Weekly Meeting with Bob Reeb Conf. Call 
10/31/17 DWR/Sites Reservoir Agreements Conf. Call 
11/01/17 DWA Facilities Tour DWA 
11/02/17 Univ. N. Carolina Study Results Conf. Call 
11/02/17 DWA Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
11/03/17 DWA Special Board Meeting On Water Supply DWA 
11/06/17 DWA I.S./Staff/Snow Creek Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
11/07/17 DWA Bi-Monthly Board Meeting DWA 
11/07/17 SGPSB SGMA Meeting SGPWA 
   

Activities: 
 
1) Sites Reservoir 
2) E-Billing – implementing customer payment history capabilities 
3) Outreach Talking Points – KESQ 
4) Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing 
5) Whitewater Hydro – Developing new administration and operating procedures 
6) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee     
      (Standing) 
7) MSWD Second Amended Petition– Ongoing 
8) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
9) Lake Oroville Spillway Damage 
10)  Replacement Pipelines 2017-2018 
11)  Lake Oroville NMFS Requirements 
12) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination/Article 21/Pool A/Pool B/Yuba Water 
13) DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
14) SGMA Alternative Plans and Bridge Documents 
15) SWP 2017 Water Supply 
16)  ACBCI Law Suits 
17)  Lake Perris Dam Remediation 
18)  Section 14 Pipeline Easements 
19)  DOI Regulation 
 
 
 



 

 

Activities: 
(Cont.) 
 
20)  A.B. 1562 
21)  Repair of Facility Access Roads Damaged in the September 10 Storm 
22)  Whitewater Hydro Operations Coordination with Recharge Basin O&M 
23)  Multi-Agency Rate Study 
24)  SGMA Tribal Stakeholder Meetings 
25)  Whitewater Spreading Basins – BLM Permits 
26)  Lake Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project Participation 
27)  Cal Waterfix Cost Allocation 
28) DWA Surface Water Filtration Feasibility Study 
29) Modification of our CVRWMP Boundary 
30) MSWD Mediation 
31) Review Documents for MSWD Public Records Act Request 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board/Memos/USGS MSK  

6-A 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 7, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 2017-2018 

UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY COOPERATIVE WATER 
RESOURCES PROGRAM 

 
Attached for your review is a letter dated October 23, 2017 from the United States 
Geological Survey (“USGS”), which outlines the cost for Agency participation in the 2017-
2018 Cooperative Water Resources Program.  As in previous years, the Agency, along 
with Coachella Valley Water District, the Riverside County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (“Agencies”) and the USGS will share the costs for the operation 
and maintenance of a number of stream gaging facilities, as well as a ground and surface 
water quality program. 
 
The cost share ratio of the program remains at 60:40 between the agencies and the 
USGS. 
 
The amount requested for the 2017-2018 test year is $84,235, which is a 1.7% increase 
than last year.  This amount covers the operation and maintenance costs for 13 gauging 
stations ($78,485) and the cost of ground water and surface water quality sampling 
($5,750). 
 
Staff wishes to continue participation in the USGS Cooperative Water Resources 
Program in order to maintain the monitoring of our water supplies and uses throughout 
the upper Coachella Valley, and requests Board approval of the Agency's participation in 
the 2017-2018 program in the amount of $84,235. 





























6-B 

 

 

 
STAFF REPORT  

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 7, 2017 

 
 
 

RE: REQUEST DESIGNATION OF DWA DELEGATE 
TO ACWA GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING 

  
 
Desert Water Agency received notice from the Association of California Water Agencies 
(ACWA) regarding the Election of Officers at the General Session Membership Meeting 
at the ACWA 2017 Fall Conference. 
 
The Membership Meeting will be held on November 29 in Anaheim. Each member agency 
needs to designate a voting representative who will be required to register and sign as 
the proxy holder. The purpose of the meeting is to formally nominate and elect ACWA’s 
President and Vice President for the 2018-2019 term and to conduct a vote by the 
membership on proposed amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws as recommended by its Board 
of Directors. 
  
President Cioffi will not be attending the conference this year; therefore, a proxy is needed 
in his place. Staff requests that the Board designate a Director who will cast Desert Water 
Agency’s vote on the election of ACWA officers and its Bylaws amendments at the 
conference’s General Session on November 29, 2017. 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: ACWA Members:  General Managers and Board Presidents 

CC: ACWA Board of Directors 

FROM: Timothy Quinn, ACWA Executive Director 

DATE: October 11, 2017 

SUBJECT: General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference 

There will be a General Session Membership Meeting at the 2017 Fall Conference in Anaheim, California, 
on Wednesday, November 29. The meeting will be held in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Marriott Anaheim, 
at 1:20 p.m. The purpose of the meeting is to formally nominate and elect ACWA’s President and Vice 
President for the 2018-2019 term and to conduct a vote by the membership on proposed amendments 
to ACWA’s Bylaws as recommended by the Board of Directors at its meeting on September 29, 2017. 

Election of President/Vice President 

The ACWA Nominating Committee has announced a 2018-2019 slate that recommends current Vice 
President Brent Hastey for ACWA President and current Federal Affairs Committee Chair Steven LaMar 
for ACWA Vice President. As provided by ACWA’s Bylaws (Article 9, Section 9) nominations from the 
floor will be accepted prior to the vote. Such nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolu-
tion of the governing body of the member agency making and seconding such nomination. (See 
attached for General Session/Election Procedures.) 

Proposed Amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws 

As part of the ongoing efforts to ensure ACWA’s Bylaws are current and reflect consistency with other 
governance documents and daily operations, the Board of Directors is recommending several 
amendments to the bylaws for consideration by the membership. A Legal Affairs Committee (LAC) 
Workgroup reviewed the proposed amendments and provided an analysis pursuant to ACWA’s Bylaws 
(Article 9, Section 8). 

Following is a list of the proposed amendments to the bylaws along with the rational for the change and 
the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. 



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents 
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference 
October 11, 2017 • Page 2 
 
 

 

Article 7 – Standing Committees 

1. Section 4. Committee Composition.  Each limited standing committee shall have a membership 
composition that is comprised of members in the quantity and with qualifications as defined by the 
provisions of these bylaws. The committee chair position shall not be included in the maximum 
count for determining the committee composition total of any given limited committee. The 
committee chair shall, however, be a voting member of their respective committee subject to the 
rules and procedures of each committee. 

Rationale:  Staff is recommending this amendment to the bylaws to allow the President 
flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd 
number committee composition total. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose. 

2. Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17. 

Rationale.  Staff noted that the use of the term “individual” versus “representative” 
(and one instance of “member”) was inconsistent throughout the committee 
composition description for each of the standing committees in Article 7. Staff asked the 
LAC Workgroup to review Section 1, Qualifications, as well as each of the committee 
descriptions to make a determination as to which term best applies for all of the 
committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests 
that “Member” would be the most appropriate word for consistency throughout the 
bylaws. However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to 
surrounding text for clarity (for an example see Section 15 (State Legislative Committee) 
where “member” is separately used to denote a “member agency” and so would need 
to state “member-agency” consistently to accommodate the more general use of 
“member” throughout the bylaws). 

Staff Response:  Staff revised the terms in the committee section descriptions (Sections 
5 through 17) to “member” for consistency and the surrounding language where 
needed in response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. (See attached bylaws for 
proposed amendments to these sections.) 

3. Section 5. Agriculture Committee. There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose duty it shall be to 
recommend Association policy, positions and programs to the Board of Directors, State Legislative 
Committee, Federal Affairs Committee or other committees, as appropriate, regarding agricultural 
issues affecting the interests of ACWA and its members. The committee shall consist of at least one 
member from each region. 



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents 
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference 
October 11, 2017 • Page 3 
 
 

 

Rationale:  The 2016-2017 Business and Strategic Plan initiative to increase involvement 
and engagement from ACWA’s agricultural members has successfully generated 
momentum amongst ACWA’s agricultural members and a renewed attention to and 
involvement in key policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst 
this success, a concern has arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of 
Directors finishes its current term and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked 
the suggestion that ACWA should consider creating an Agriculture Committee as the 
thirteenth standing committee of the Association to continue the objectives of the Ag 
Initiative long-term. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended 
purpose. 

4. Section 12. Legal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be 
to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance 
involving legal matters of significance to members of the Association agencies, including but not 
limited to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources 
agency matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative 
Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to 
determine which ones are of major significance to the members of the Association agencies and, 
assuming a finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which 
the committee believes the Association should take with respect thereto. The committee shall be 
composed of between 35 34 and 45 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be a member of the California 
Bar and shall be, or act as, counsel for a member of the Association agency, representing diverse 
interests within the Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas 
throughout the state, large and small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created 
under the various enabling statutes, etc. Further, there shall be at least one representative from 
each region on the committee. The committee shall consist of a least one member from each region. 

Rationale:  Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total 
when the chair is added. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee 
Composition, above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall 
LAC membership numbers. 

Article 9 – Meeting of Members 

5. Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the 
bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment, 
revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 30 90 days 
prior to the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any 



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents 
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference 
October 11, 2017 • Page 4 
 
 

 

proposed amendments or revisions to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee 
to develop an unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an 
analysis for the proposed amendments or revisions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute 
copies of any resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all 
members of the Association at least five not less than 10 days or more than 90 days prior to 
presentation at such meeting. The written notice of the membership meeting shall be given to each 
voting member of the Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 30 90-day 
rule may be suspended at any meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the 
members present. Voting on resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by 
Sections 3 5 and 4 6 of this Article. 

Rationale:  Staff recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for amendments, 
revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any membership meeting to 
provide the Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop the required analysis 
and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in Article 9, Sections 3 and 
4 of the bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45 days prior to a given 
membership meeting to allow the member agency boards adequate time to designate their 
authorized voting representative. 

LAC Workgroup Analysis:  This proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose. 
However, workgroup members did express some concern that the 120-day submission 
requirement may unduly limit the Association’s ability to quickly respond to state or federal 
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to 
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 90-days for submission 
while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than 10-days and no 
earlier than 90-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.  

Staff Response:  Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of 120 days in 
response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis. 

The Board of Directors recommends adoption of the proposed amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws through 
a vote of the membership. 

Webinar on Proposed Amendments to Bylaws 
ACWA staff is hosting a webinar on Tuesday, November 7, at 10:00 a.m. in advance of the membership 
meeting to answer any questions members may have pertaining to the proposed amendments to the 
bylaws. Please register for the webinar at the link listed below: 

Please register for Bylaws Webinar on Nov 07, 2017 10:00 AM PST at:  
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/18153322847132675 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar. 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/18153322847132675


ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents 
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference 
October 11, 2017 • Page 5 
 
 

 

Membership Voting Process 

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the 
designated voting representative identified by the member agency on the proxy designation form. The 
designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder to receive the proxy 
card. Proxy cards will only be available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. 
and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom 
Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the 
Platinum Ballroom 1-6. 

To expedite the sign-in process at the ACWA General Session Desk, please indicate your voting delegate 
on the enclosed proxy designation form and return it by email (donnap@acwa.com) or fax 
(916-325-4857) at your earliest convenience prior to conference. If there is a last minute change of 
delegate, please let us know before the meeting date by contacting ACWA’s Clerk of the Board, 
Donna Pangborn, at 916-441-4545 or donnap@acwa.com. 

If you have any questions regarding this process, please contact Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn at 
the ACWA office at 916-441-4545 or donnap@acwa.com. 

dgp 

Enclosures: 

1. General Session/Election Procedures 
2. Proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendments – Redline Version 
3. Proxy Designation Form 

mailto:donnap@acwa.com


 

Proxy Designation Form_General Session Fall 2017.Docx 

PROXY DESIGNATION FORM 

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING(S) 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2017 AT 1:20PM 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2017 AT 1:20PM (IF NEEDED) 

 
TO: Donna Pangborn, Clerk of the Board 
 
EMAIL: donnap@acwa.com 
 
FAX: 916-325-4857 
 
The person designated below will be attending the ACWA General Session Membership Meeting(s) on 
Wednesday, November 29, 2017 (and November 30, 2017 if necessary) as our voting delegate. 

      

 

      
MEMBER AGENCY’S NAME  AGENCY’S TELEPHONE No. 

      

 

 
MEMBER AGENCY’S AUTHORIZING REPRESENTATIVE  SIGNATURE 

      

 

 
DELEGATE’S NAME  SIGNATURE 

      
 

      
DELEGATE’S EMAIL  DELEGATE’S TELEPHONE No. 

             
DELEGATE’S AFFILIATON (if different from assigning agency)1  DATE 

      
1 If your agency designates a delegate from another entity to serve as its authorized voting representative, 
please indicate the delegate’s entity in the appropriate space above. Note: Delegates need to sign the proxy 
form indicating they have accepted the responsibility of carrying the proxy. 

 
REMINDER: Proxy cards will be available for pick up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and 
12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom Center, 
Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum 
Ballroom 1-6. 



6-C 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
STAFF REPORT  

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 7, 2017 

 
 
 

RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO INCREASE FUNDING OF PHASE 
I – SITES RESERVOIR PROJECT 

  
 
Previous Board Action 
  
On 07/28/2016, the Agency submitted the executed “Sites Reservoir Project, Phase I 
Proposal to Participate Form” to the Sites Project Authority.  This certified that the Agency 
was eligible to participate, that we elected to participate and agreed to be a member in 
good standing of the Reservoir Project Agreement Committee. 
 
At the time of application, the Agency applied for 6,500-acre feet.  This additional water 
supply is thought necessary to help recover Table A water supply lost due to reduced 
reliability (represents a 12% of our current Table A amount), and/or it can be used to 
replace water supply that could be called back by Metropolitan Water District (11,900 acre 
feet).  It can also help provide for the increased water supply called for in the Coachella 
Valley water management plans. 
 
The Agency applied for 6,500 acre-feet of Class 1 water at a not to exceed cost of 
$60/acre feet or $390,000 for Phase I funding.  The current estimate of water that will be 
produced on a long-term average is 500,000-acre feet per year.  It was assumed that fifty 
percent of the water would be used for Proposition 1 environmental benefit (250,000-acre 
feet).  It was also assumed that 130,000-acre feet of water would be committed to meet 
northern Sacramento Valley demand.   This meant there would be an estimated 120,000 
acre feet of Class 1 water available from the total 500,000 acre feet for south of delta 
demand. 
 
In our application, the Agency did not ask for any Class 2 water.  Class 2 water is water 
that could become available to members at the end of Phase I, as a result of less than 
50% funding from Proposition 1.  No Class 2 water will be available if Proposition 1 funds 
50% of the reservoir. However, if for example, funding is only 30% there would be an 



 

BOARD/KRAUSE/STAFF RPTS/2017                                                Page 2 of 3 

additional 20% of the reservoir capacity available for potable water supply (100,000-acre 
feet). Class 2 water is water at a not-to-exceed cost of $30/acre feet. 
 
The Agency submitted as part of the Proposal to Participate Form an exit clause that 
stated if the Agency is unable to receive support from The Metropolitan Water Agency of 
Southern California (MWD) in the Agency’s activities to acquire additional water supply 
and to deliver said water in accordance with our current exchange agreement, the Agency 
will be able to exit out of the Sites agreement. Subsequently, MWD wrote a letter 
supporting the Agency’s activities to acquire additional water. 
 
Our application for 6,500-acre feet of Class 1 water could only be partially accepted.  Our 
request was equal to 56.9% of the total Class 1 water outside of the Sacramento Valley.  
This percentage was applied to our request reducing it to 3,698.4-acre feet.  The 
remaining 2,801.06 acre feet of water we requested was reclassified as Class 2 water.  
Class 2 water will only become available if the money from Proposition 1 is less than 50% 
of the cost of the reservoir. 
 
Phase I Costs 
The estimated cost of work to be performed in Phase I of this project development was 
$15,134,507.  The cost of Class 1 and Class 2 water was estimated to be $48.50 per 
acre-foot and $24.25 per acre-foot respectively.  Our total cost of participation in Phase I 
was $247,316.05. 
 
Requested Authorization 
At the Boards January 24, 2017, Board meeting, the DWA Board authorized for the 
General Manager to execute the “Sites Project Authority’s Amended and Restated Phase 
I Reservoir Project Agreement, dated 11/21/16 Draft, and to provide funding for Phase I 
in the amount of $247,316.05 (Please note that this amount should have been 
$247,310.47). 
 
Requested Authorization to Increase Phase I Funding 
The purpose of this Board Action is to request an increase for DWA’s funding in the Phase 
I of the project from $247,298.11 to $275,000, an increase of $27,701.89.  The requested 
increase is necessary to cover the cost of the additional Class 1 water that is being made 
DWA and others based on the reallocation process. 
 
The reallocation is a result of other Class I participants withdrawing their participation in 
Class I water.  Reclamation District (RD) 2035 and Westlands Water District have 
withdrawn their requests for 21,830 acre-feet of Class I water.  The cost for Class I and 
Class 2 water remains the same respectively at $48.50 and $24.25 per acre-foot.  This 
water is now being reallocated to other participants proportionally to their original 
requested participation.  DWA’s Class I water participation has increased from 3,689.4-
acre-feet to 4,637 acre-feet at a cost of $48.50.  DWA’s Class 2 water participation has 
decreased from 2801.06-acre-feet to 1,863 acre-feet. 



 

BOARD/KRAUSE/STAFF RPTS/2017                                                Page 3 of 3 

 
 
In order to preserve DWA’s interests in Sites Reservoir Project staff requests increasing 
DWA’s funding in the Phase I of the project from $247,298.11 to $275,000, an increase 
of $27,701.89.  Staff also requests authorization to increase future funding as necessary 
up to the not to exceed amount of $390,000 agreed to in the Agency’s executed Phase I 
Proposal to Participate Form submitted on 07/28/2016. 
 

 WATER CLASS

AMOUNT

ACRE-FEET

UNIT COST

PER

ACRE-FOOT

COST

PER

CLASS

CLASS I 3,698.37   48.50$         179,370.95$ 

CLASS 2 2,801.63   24.25$         67,939.53$    

TOTALS 6,500.00   247,310.47$ 

 WATER CLASS

AMOUNT

ACRE-FEET

UNIT COST

PER

ACRE-FOOT

COST

PER

CLASS

CLASS I 4637.00 48.50$         224,894.50$ 

CLASS 2 1863.00 24.25$         45,177.75$    

TOTALS 6500.00 270,072.25$ 

ORIGINAL ALLOCATION

REALLOCATION







7-A 

01358.00002\30262129.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

October 19, 2017 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: OCTOBER 19, 2017 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The October 19, 2017 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento. 

1. Closed Session.  The meeting began with a lengthy closed session 

discussion of pending and ongoing litigation involving challenges to the environmental document 

for Cal Water Fix, the validation action by DWR to confirm its authority to construct the project 

and finance it with the sale of bonds, and administrative proceedings before the State Water 

Resources Control Board for approval of an additional point of diversion north of Sacramento to 

divert water into the proposed tunnels.  Most of the discussion should not be shared in a memo 

made available to the public, as it includes discussion of litigation strategies and assessment of 

legal position.  However, a couple of points can be shared safely.  Thus far, $1.5 million has been 

spent to prepare the administrative record for the legal actions challenging the adequacy of the 

environmental document.  The administrative record will consist of more than two million 

documents and will need to be placed on a usable data base.  The various legal actions have been 

consolidated and assigned to the Superior Court in Sacramento County.  As to the validation action, 

39 parties have filed answers, although some of those are friendly answers. Some parties were 

granted extensions of time until November 15 to file answers.  Those extensions required court 

approval. 

2. State Water Project Management Report.  Joel Ledesma was present from 

DWR to provide a State Water Project Management Report.  He stated that the repair work at the 

Lake Oroville spillway has been the most successful engineering effort by DWR in quite some 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\30262129.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

time.  Temporary repairs to the spillway have been performed to make it functional in time for the 

upcoming winter season.  An enormous amount of work was completed in a very short period of 

time.  A forensics report is being prepared which will be instrumental in obtaining cost recovery 

from the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  A comprehensive assessment plan is being 

prepared to provide guidance on the ultimate repairs and necessary improvements, going forward.  

The assessment plan will address what to do with the existing emergency spillway, whether 

another spillway should be constructed, and other relevant items.  Meanwhile, FEMA has provided 

approval for another $85 million in cost recovery. 

3. Water Operations Report.  John Leahigh from DWR provided a report on 

SWP water operations.  DWR is on track to lower the water level in Lake Oroville to 700 feet 

elevation by November 1.  Currently the water elevation is just a little above the 700 foot mark.  

A plan of operations has been prepared for operating the interim spillway at Oroville during the 

upcoming rainy season.  That plan has been submitted to the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission and to the California Division of Safety of Dams.  The operations plan will address 

the flood control obligations downstream.  The plan includes an enhanced flood control pool in 

Lake Oroville for this upcoming year.  Leahigh reported that there are very low inflows from the 

Delta currently.  Much of the water must be allowed to flow through the Delta in order to satisfy 

regulatory requirements.  Meanwhile, DWR is drafting heavily from the San Luis Reservoir to 

satisfy Contractor demands downstream.  Thus, the likelihood of the San Luis Reservoir filling, 

and spilling, is quite low.  

4. General Manager’s Report.  SWC General Manager Jennifer Pierre reported 

that DWR’s November 1 event at Lake Oroville to celebrate the work performed on the spillway 

will merely be a press conference, rather than a celebration that Contractors are invited to attend.  

She said that no arrangements are in place to accommodate a large crown, and that there is no need 

for Contactors to make an appearance at that press conference. 

5. Energy Objectives Update.  Tim Haines provided a report on energy 

objectives.  A couple of slides were presented, copies of which are included along with this memo.  

The Contractors are attempting to collaborate with DWR in updating the strategic plan to address 

energy issues going forward.  The Contactors do not anticipate a need to spend additional money 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\30262129.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

for additional support until the beginning of next year.  Tim reported that there was a “step change” 

increase in power costs beginning in the year 2000, resulting from the creation of the California 

Independent Systems Operator to manage energy transmission, the energy crisis that occurred at 

about that time, and the new carbon emission requirements adopted by the State. These factors 

have resulted in a 500% increase in the cost of power over the last ten years.  One of these slides 

identifies the threat confronting the Contractors in the categories of transmission issues, “cap and 

trade” issues, and new legislation (SB 100) that would require the State Water Project to get to 

100% renewable energy by the year 2045.  The pending legislation to move to 100% renewable 

energy would give the SWP credit for operating large hydro power facilities, whereas AB 32 

(already adopted) has not given the SWP credit for hydro power generation.  The enormous 

increase in power costs is a matter of grave concern to the Contractors and to DWR, and is 

demanding significant attention. 

Michael T. Riddell  



Agenda Item 6a 

Trinity Storage 
1.76 MAF 

Shasta Storage 
3.27 MAF 

State Water Contractors Board 
Meeting 

October 19, 2017 

Net Delta Outflow 
8,500 cfs 

Keswick Release 
8,000 cfs 

Oroville Storage 
1.26 MAF 

3 	 °rev]Ile 
Releases 
2,400 cfs 

0 

Folsom Storage 
0.60 MAF 

Nimbus 
Release 
2,000 cfs 

Freeport 
Noe, Bay Aqu.uct 	y 	11,602 cfs 

Clifton Court 300 cfs 
Jones PP 4,400 cfs 
Vernalis 2,557 cfs 

tN 

New Melones Storage 
2.02 MAF 

River 

San Luis: 
SWP 0.87 M 
CVP 0.72 MAF 
Total 1.60 MAF 

  

Pyranid -4 

   

Castaic 
Silverwood 

Pe 

Southern Reservoirs Storage 
0.60 MAF 

Data compiled on:  
10/18/2017 



C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
  D

ai
ly

/M
o

n
th

ly
  P

re
ci

p
it

at
io

n
  (

in
c h

es
)  

T
o

ta
l
 W
at

er
  Y

ea
r  

P
re

c i
p

it
at

io
n

  

0 
Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 	Apr 1 May 1 	Jun 1 	Jul 1 

Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

Nov 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 Oct 1 

North Sierra Precipitation: 8-Station Index, October 18, 2017 

QRD 
BCM - 

BYM 

PCF 

MS 
SHA 
MNR 

SC =11 oLlITUI Shasta City 
- Shasta Dam 
- Mineral 

Quincy 
- Brush Creek 

Sierraville RS 
- Blue Canyon 

Pacific House 

88.5 

Percent of Average for this Date: 0% 
	 - 94.7 

2016-2017 Daily Precip (wettest) 
1982-1983 (2nd wettest) 

1997-1998 82.4 

50 
Average (1922-1998) 

50.0 

45 

40 2014-2015 Daily Precip 	 
37.2 

35 

30 - 

25 

20 1976-1977(2nd driest & driest thru Aug) 	19.0 

15 

10 

5 Daily Precip:0 

100 

95 

90 

85 

80 

75 

70 

65 

60 

55 



90 

85 

80 

75 

70 

• 65 

7-"c  60 
0 

55 
0. 
c.) 

• 45 

40 

0  35 
0 

0— • 3 1'4 

E 25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

L 50 
cr. 

San Joaquin Precipitation: 5-Station Index, October 18, 2017 

T
o t

a
l W

a t
er

  Y
ea

r  
P

re
c

ip
it

a t
io

n
  

Percent of Average for this Date: 3% CVT - Calaveras Big Trees 
HTH - Hetch Hetchy 

YSV - Yosemite Headquarters 

40.8 Average (1961-2010) 

1976-1977(2nd driest & driest thru Aug) 

4'  ...4040 07.1y Precip:i 

1982-1983 (wettest) 

ZO16-2017 Daily Precip 2nd wettest) 

NFR - North Fork RS 

HNT - Huntington Lake 77.4 

r— 72.7 

1997-1998 
65.2 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 
19.0 
15.4 

Oct 1 
	

Nov 1 
	

Dec 1 
	

Jan 1 
	

Feb 1 	Mar 1 	Apr 1 	May 1 	Jun 1 
	

Jul 1 
	

Aug 1 	Sep 1 	Oct 1 
Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 



Tulare Basin Precipitation: 6-Station Index, October 18, 2017 

Feb 1 	Mar 1 	Apr 1 	May 1 	Jun 1 
Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

10 

0 

T
ot

a
l W

a t
er

  Y
ea

r  
P

re
c

ip
it

at
io

n
  

BAL - Balch PH 

GNF - Giant Forest 
ASM - Ash Mt. 1968-1969 (Wettest) 

1997-1998 (2nd wettest) 

29.3 
Average (1961-2010) 

Percent of Average for this Date: 0% 

,-- 46.9 
2016-2017 Daily Precip 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 
13.5 

10.9 

1976-1977 Daily Precip (Driest) 

Preci 

56.3 
54.2 

SGV - Springville. 
PSC - Pascoes 

SB - Isabella Dam 

Jul 1 Oct 1 Sep 1 Aug 1 Oct 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 Nov 1 

70 

65 

60 

55 

.5 40 
E i2 
a 

= 35 
4E.  
0 

e > 25 
1 

E 20 = 



Ending At Midnight - November 1, 2017

Graph Updated 11/02/2017 07:45 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
72% | 110%

Lake Shasta
70% | 119%

Lake Oroville
34% | 57%

Folsom Lake
57% | 111%

New Melones Lake
83% | 149%

Don Pedro Reservoir
79% | 122%

Lake McClure
65% | 147%

San Luis Reservoir
73% | 138%

Millerton Lake
60% | 159%

Lake Perris
45% | 59%

Castaic Lake
86% | 114%

Pine Flat Reservoir
47% | 135%



10/12/2017 

Agenda Item 9 

Energy Objectives 
Strategic Energy Engagement 

 

 

- An approach to coordinate with DWR 

 

SVVC 

  

 

October 19, 2017 

 

E nergy Status Update (Jennifer, This slide is intended to respond to what I understand the 

Board wants to know — is there something that impacts water deliveries or costs and is there any pending Board action? 
The rest are "background" if they are interested in knowing what is going on.) 

 

• Matters of Board Interest 
• Cost of Water Delivery 

• Transmission 

• Carbon Policy 

• Power Markets 

• Recent Activities 

Aging Infrastructure and recent and 

pending legislative and regulatory 
activities will have an effect on SWP costs 

 

• Board Action 
• Current authority sufficient for Steering Committee and Energy Committee 

activities 

• Updated Strategic Plan expected in January 2017 

 

1 



Issue & Approach 
>Issue — SWP energy costs will continue to rise into the foreseeable future. 

>Approach — Working thru DWR/SWC Energy Committee to develop and 
analyze threats and propose a Strategic Plan to SWC and DWR principals 
(Target date is January) 

Water Delivery Cost ($/MWh) 

80.0 

sigmzsga 	 

10/12/2017 

50.0 

40.0 

30.0 

20.0 

10.0 

0.0 

1987 1989 1991 1993 1995 199 7 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 

—10.0 

41/ 

311111444•41  A 

APS rAmIlte 	• 

SWC View of Threats & Estimate of Status Quo 
Costs 

> Transmission (Litigation at FERC, Stakeholder Proceeding at CAISO & AB 726/813, 2-Yr Bill) 

> 500% increase in last decade, $115M in 2017 

> Will increase -$100M by mid-2020s (without considering CAISO regionalization and cost shifts) 

S. Engage at state, regional and federal level 

> Cap and Trade (AB 398, passed with 2/3 vote & Cap-and-Trade Amendments) 

> Significant Risk: -$75M since 2013, $20M annually will increase significantly in mid-2020s 

> Engage at Air Resources Board but not party to AB 398 negotiations 

> 100% Renewable (SB 100, 2-Yr Bill -first time mandate imposed on SWP, first time SWC take official position on energy bill) 

> -$40M annual increase if current premiums are applied to new purchases 

D. Engage at Legislature 

➢ CAISO Regionalization / Volatile Markets (AB 726 & 813) 

> Integrate Renewables - (No Bill Introduced, Proof of Concept) Claims by NGOs and regulators that SWP "not doing enough," past legislation 
calling for study likely to be renewed 

10/12/2017 

2 



Example of What Board Will Consider 
Threat: Push Toward Carbon Free Power 

            

How risk Is addressed 

       

Accelerate renewable purchases 

   

Refer to 2012 Climate Action Plan 

   

         

Cost implications/ 

Cost to implement 

        

  

Face potential mandates that add $40 to 

$80 million per year cost 

  

Minimize additional cost by 

proactive purchases 

Cost/Benefit to implement 

Option A 

 

           

ROI 

        

            

likelihood of success 

        

  

Assessment of how likely current 

approach will be effective 

DWR engage consistent with state policy 

SWC engage consistent with water 

delivery mission 

   

         

Define role of DWR and 

SWC 

      

            

Other Considerations 

       

Joint DWR / SWC recommendation on which Threats to confront, the Options to pursue and 

the Implementation Plan 

10/12/2017 

10/12/2017 

3 



7-C 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
OCTOBER 26, 2017 
 
 
TO:  Mark Krause, General Manager and Chief Engineer 
  Desert Water Agency 
 
FROM: Bob Reeb 
  Reeb Government Relations, LLC 
 
SUBJECT: 2017 Annual Report 
 
 
 
 
Many a man curses the rain that falls upon his head, and knows not that it brings 
abundance to drive away the hunger.  
 

~Saint Basil the Great 
 
 
The years 2012–2015 ranked as the four driest years on record for California in terms of 
precipitation. In 2016, Northern California experienced average to slightly above‑average 
precipitation, but conditions statewide did not improve enough to erase the effects of 
severe drought. Then, came the winter of 2017 during which 49 atmospheric rivers made 
landfall on the West Coast of the United States between October 1, 2016 and mid-April 
2017. This was much greater than normal in terms of the number and strength; one-third 
of the land falling atmospheric rivers were categorized as “strong” or “extreme.” Water 
year 2017 (October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017) dramatically illustrated the variability 
in California’s annual precipitation, ending the state’s 5-year drought and coming in at 
second place for statewide runoff, behind the wettest year of 1983. 
 
The manner in which government processes information in producing public policies has 
been the subject of academic research. Suffice it to say that in regard to California state 
government, a five-year drought followed by a wet winter produced significant gyrations 
in water resources policy and state budget expenditures. Since Governor Edmund G. 
Brown, Jr. first declared a state of drought emergency in January 2014, his Administration 
worked with the Legislature to appropriate $3.9 billion to assist drought‑ impacted 
communities and provide additional resources for critical water infrastructure projects, 
wildfire suppression and wildlife emergencies.  
 



2 | P a g e  
 

Fiscal Year 2017-18 State Budget 
 
Prepared during the fifth year of drought in the fall of 2016, Governor Brown’s proposed 
budget released in January 2017 included an additional $178.7 million of one‑ time 
resources for Fiscal Year 2017‑18 to reflect drought conditions and provide immediate 
response to drought impacts. 
 
The FY 2017-18 proposed budget was developed to build on programs and expenditures 
approved in prior state budgets based on the 10 actions of the California Water Action 
Plan, including making conservation a way of life, increasing regional self‑ reliance in 
water supplies, expanding water storage, improving groundwater management and 
improving flood protection. Released in January 2014, the California Water Action Plan 
sets forth the Brown Administration’s blueprint for California to build more reliable and 
resilient water systems and restore important ecosystems. 
 
The 2017 Budget Act, according to the Department of Finance, adds significant money to 
the state’s Rainy Day Fund and pays down accumulated debts and liabilities. Governor 
Brown expressed concern while introducing his budget proposal in January that his 
budget countered “the potential fiscal impact of federal policy changes on California and 
the potential end of an economic expansion that has surpassed historical averages.” The 
proposed budget focused state spending on the Governor’s key priorities—investing in 
education, counteracting the effects of poverty, and improving the state’s streets, roads 
and transportation infrastructure. 
 
In addition to a $1.4 billion reserve in the Special Fund for Economic Uncertainties, the 
Governor’s budget added $1.8 billion to the Proposition 2 Budget Stabilization Account, 
bringing the balance to $8.5 billion in 2017‑18—or 66 percent of its constitutional target. 
Additionally, much of the new spending added after the May Revision is one‑ time in 
nature, which avoids ongoing commitments that would put pressure on the budget in 
future years. As of September 2017, state revenues for FY 2017-18 exceeded budget 
projections by $660 million. 
 
 
First Year of the 2017-18 Regular Session of the Legislature 
 
The 2017-18 Regular Session was gaveled into order on December 5, 2016 with the 
Democratic Party holding super-majorities in both the Senate and Assembly. Tax 
proposals, constitutional amendments and urgency statutes require a two-thirds majority 
vote in each house of the legislature, which theoretically would provide legislative 
Democrats the ability to enact sweeping changes to California’s statutory landscape 
without any Republican Party legislative support. 
 
A key priority in the Brown Administration’s California Water Action Plan is to make 
conservation a way of life. The Brown Administration believes that improving water 
conservation is essential for a more reliable water supply and to make the state more 
resilient to drought, particularly given future population increases and climate change. In 



3 | P a g e  
 

May 2016, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B‑37‑16, which directed agencies 
to develop a permanent long‑ term framework to: (1) use water more wisely, (2) eliminate 
water waste, (3) strengthen local drought resilience, and (4) improve agricultural water 
use efficiency and drought planning. 
 
Throughout 2016, California’s urban water suppliers, including Desert Water Agency, 
continued to demonstrate an ongoing commitment to conservation. Under the State 
Water Board’s modified drought emergency regulation, water conservation levels 
remained high for most communities that had passed the state’s “stress test,” certifying 
they had sufficient supplies to withstand three additional years of drought. The State 
Water Board shifted its focus to long‑ term efficient water use and meeting regional 
drought preparedness goals after taking a more draconian approach to achieving a 25 
percent reduction in urban water use during the early years of the drought. In November 
2016, the Department of Water Resources, Energy Commission, Public Utilities 
Commission, Department of Food and Agriculture, and the State Water Board released 
a draft proposal to implement Governor Brown’s May 2016 Executive Order. The proposal 
was developed through a public process and recommended new water efficiency 
standards, additional drought planning requirements, technology assessments for 
reducing leaks, and mechanisms for compliance and enforcement.  
 
The relationship between California state government and its political subdivisions is a 
continuum that is characterized by fluctuations concerning state control and local 
autonomy. The work of Reeb Government Relations on behalf of the Agency is 
punctuated by these fluctuations. During the 2012-2016 drought and in the 2017 
legislative session, our focus increasingly has been on fighting proposals that would 
increase state control at the expense of local autonomy in an effort to preserve decision 
making authority for local elected officials and the professionals with the experience and 
expertise they employ to operate public water systems. 
 
In April 2017, following unprecedented water conservation and plentiful winter rain and 
snow, Governor Brown ended the drought state of emergency in most of California. The 
traditional May Revision of the proposed budget—where the governor and his 
Administration take into account actual revenues and changed conditions, if any—
reflected a shift from emergency drought actions to ongoing efforts to make the state 
more resilient to climate change and to continue water conservation. In January, the 
Governor’s Budget proposed an additional $178.7 million to continue the state’s 
emergency response to the drought, with the expectation that the Administration would 
continue to monitor conditions through the 2017 rainy season and reevaluate budget year 
needs. The May Revision proposed $62.9 million, a decrease of $115.8 million, to 
address continuing drought legacy issues, such as tree mortality and groundwater 
shortages in the Central Valley. 
 
The May Revision supported the Administration’s efforts to make conservation a way of 
life by seeking an additional five positions at the State Water Board to be funded within 
existing resources to implement the Administration’s proposed legislation, released in 
early April, which would (1) establish new urban water use efficiency standards, (2) 



4 | P a g e  
 

enhance state and local enforcement of these standards, (3) establish permanent water 
use and conservation reporting requirements, and (4) implement new urban water 
shortage contingency plans and agricultural water management plans. The May Revision 
presumed that the Legislature would approve a budget trailer bill to implement all of the 
recommendations in the April 2017 “Making Water Conservation a Way of Life.” The 
adopted budget, however, provided for only two additional positions to evaluate ongoing 
reporting of local water conservation data, due in part, to opposition from urban water 
suppliers against increasing State Water Board staffing levels ahead of legislative action 
regarding the budget trailer bill. 
 
Lawmakers in both houses of the Legislature collectively introduced 2,550 bills in the first 
year of the 2017-18 regular session that began December 5, 2016 and stretched into in 
the early morning hours of September 16, 2017. The Assembly passed roughly 970 of its 
bills to the Senate, or 56 percent of the measures the house introduced. Meanwhile, the 
Senate passed 514 of its own bills, or 63 percent of the bills introduced by Senators. A 
total of 977 bills reached the Governor by the end of the first year of the regular session 
and Governor Brown vetoed 188 of them (12 percent). The latter figure is slightly less 
than the 15 percent he vetoed in 2016. During his 15 years as governor, Governor Brown 
has vetoed 7.8% of the bills he has considered--16,797 bills have become state law and 
1,422 bills have been vetoed. 
 
Of the 859 bills that the Governor signed this year, 567 were Assembly bills and 292 were 
Senate bills. Of the 567 Assembly bills signed into law, 85% were authored by Democrats 
and 15% were authored by Republicans. Of the 292 Senate bills signed into law, 86% 
were authored by Democrats and 14% were authored by Republicans. Of the 118 bills 
that the Governor vetoed this year, 84 were Assembly bills and 34 were Senate bills. Of 
the 84 Assembly bills that were vetoed, 87% were authored by Democrats and 13% were 
authored by Republicans. Of the 34 Senate bills that were vetoed, 82% were authored by 
Democrats and 18% were authored by Republicans. 
 
 
Agency Remains Active on the Legislative Front 
 
The Agency actively monitored or engaged in direct lobbying on 20 bills this year. Below, 
we highlight some of the legislation on which the Agency was most active. 
 
Agency Targeted in Legislation 
 
Concern for the manner in which local agencies were taking actions to implement the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) led Assembly Member Eduardo 
Garcia (D-Coachella) to amend legislation he introduced on another subject matter on 
March 28, 2017. 
 
SGMA requires all groundwater basins designated as high- or medium-priority basins by 
the Department of Water Resources to be managed under a groundwater sustainability 
plan or alternative by January 31, 2022. The act authorizes any local agency or 



5 | P a g e  
 

combination of local agencies overlying a groundwater basin to decide to become a 
groundwater sustainability agency for that basin. The act deems the Desert Water Agency 
the exclusive local agency within its respective statutory boundaries with powers to 
comply with the act. 
 
AB 1562, on or before January 1, 2020, would require the Agency to determine the 
feasibility of forming a joint powers agreement with specified entities for the purpose of 
managing the Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin and to report its findings to certain 
committees of the Legislature. By imposing additional duties on local officials, this bill 
would create a state-mandated local program. The following entities for the purpose of 
managing the Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin: (1) The Agua Caliente Band of 
Cahuilla Indians; (2) City of Indio; (3) Coachella Valley Water District; and (4) Mission 
Springs Water District. 
 
The legislation, sponsored by Mission Springs Water District, came as somewhat of a 
surprise as the Agency had been meeting with Assembly Member Garcia and his staff for 
many months to apprise him of progress toward implementing SGMA. Mission Springs 
had earlier filed a lawsuit against the Agency over SGMA implementation and the 
Legislature tends to forgo introduction of legislation while litigation is pending in the 
courts. Nevertheless, communication with the Assembly Member and his staff continued. 
And, at the same time, Reeb Government Relations began lobbying against the measure, 
arguing that in addition to the existence of pending litigation, AB 1562 interfered with local 
decision making regarding SGMA implementation and was inconsistent with the timing of 
actions required to implement SGMA. Although AB 1562 was referred to the Assembly 
Local Government Committee, the bill was not set for a hearing. AB 1562 thus became a 
2-year bill and remains eligible for consideration when the Legislature returns for the 
second year of the regular session on January 3, 2018. 
 
New Requirements Proposed for California WaterFix 
 
Assembly Member Jim Frazier (D-Oakley) introduced three bills that targeted California 
WaterFix, the Delta conveyance project sought by the Brown Administration. California 
WaterFix consists of two tunnels up to 150’ below ground designed to protect water 
supplies from the State Water Project. The project would involve three new intakes, each 
with 3,000 cubic-feet per second capacity and an average annual yield of 4.9 million acre-
feet. The project would be designed to protect against water supply disruption from failure 
of Delta levees due to sea-level rise, earthquakes and flood events. The project is 
designed to reinstate a more natural direction of river flows in the South Delta. 
 
The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009 prohibits construction of a new 
Delta conveyance facility from being initiated until the persons or entities that contract to 
receive water from the State Water Project and the federal Central Valley Project or a 
joint powers authority representing those entities have made arrangements or entered 
into contracts to pay for certain costs required for the construction, operation, and 
maintenance of the facility and full mitigation of property tax or assessments levied for 
land used in the construction, location, mitigation, or operation of the facility. AB 791 



6 | P a g e  
 

would require, before a water contractor enters into a contract to pay for these costs, that 
the lead agency provide the breakdown of costs for each water contractor entering into a 
contract and what benefits each contractor will receive based on the proportion it has 
financed of the proposed conveyance project. 
 
The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009 establishes the Delta 
Stewardship Council and requires the council to develop, adopt, and commence 
implementation of a comprehensive management plan for the Delta, known as the Delta 
Plan. The act requires a state or local public agency that proposes to undertake a covered 
action to prepare and submit to the council a written certification of consistency with the 
Delta Plan before undertaking that action. AB 792 would prohibit the council from granting 
a certification of consistency with the Delta Plan until the board has completed its update 
of a specified water quality control plan. 
 
Existing law establishes various state water policies, including the policy that source 
watersheds are recognized and defined as integral components of California’s water 
infrastructure. AB 793 would declare it to be state policy that the existing state of the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is recognized and defined as an integral component of 
California’s water infrastructure. The bill would state that the maintenance and repair of 
the Delta are eligible for the same forms of financing as other water collection and 
treatment infrastructure and would specify the maintenance and repair activities that are 
eligible are limited to certain cleanup and abatement-related restoration and conservation 
activities. 
 
Desert Water Agency joined a coalition consisting of other State Water Contractors, and 
business and labor organizations opposing the three bills introduced by Assembly 
Member Frazier. Opponents argued that the bills sought to change state policy 
established in 2009 to the disadvantage of California WaterFix. Assembly Member Frazier 
canceled a policy committee hearing for AB 792 and AB 793 in the face of opposition; 
those bills remain eligible for consideration when the Legislature returns next year. AB 
791 was narrowly approved by the Assembly Water, Parks & Wildlife Committee, but was 
held on the Suspense File by the Assembly Appropriations Committee, effectively killing 
the bill for the remainder of the 2-year session. 
 
Protecting Investments in Recycled Water Production and Use 
 
SB 7X 7 enacted in 2009 imposed various water use reduction requirements that apply 
to urban retail water suppliers, including a requirement that the state achieve a 20% 
reduction in urban per capita water use by December 31, 2020. One of the issues that 
arose during the drafting of SB 7X 7 was whether investments in recycled water 
production and the resulting use of recycled water should be protected against state 
mandated reductions in urban per capita water use. Both the State, through the 
expenditure of the proceeds of general obligation bonds, and local agencies, through the 
expenditure of local revenues, invest in the construction of recycled water production and 
distribution systems. These investments increase water supply reliability, reduce the 



7 | P a g e  
 

discharge of treated wastewater to the environment, and reduce reliance on the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta for future water supplies. 
 
SB 7X 7, in the end, did not provide a credit to local agencies that had previously invested 
in recycled water production and use. The legislation did allow a supplier to extend the 
period of time relied on to calculate its baseline gross water use. 
 
AB 869 by Assembly Member Blanca Rubio (D-West Covina) would require long-term 
standards for urban water conservation and water use to include a credit for recycled 
water. The Agency supported this legislation. 
 
Existing law, the Water Recycling Act of 1991, includes a finding that the use of recycled 
water is a cost-effective, reliable method of helping to meet California’s water supply 
needs. Further, the Act finds that retail water suppliers and recycled water producers and 
wholesalers should promote the substitution of recycled water for potable water and 
imported water in order to maximize the appropriate cost-effective use of recycled water 
in California. Existing law, the Water Recycling Act, also finds that a substantial portion 
of the future water requirements of this state may be economically met by beneficial use 
of recycled water, and that it is the intention of the Legislature that the state undertake all 
possible steps to encourage development of water recycling facilities so that recycled 
water may be made available to help meet the growing water requirements of the state. 
 
SB 623 proposed to add a new section to the Water Recycling Law that would prohibit an 
urban retail water supplier from being required by a regulation to reduce the amount of 
recycled water it produces, sells, or distributes for beneficial potable or nonpotable uses 
at any time, including, but not limited to: (1) During a period for which the Governor has 
issued a proclamation of a state of emergency under the California Emergency Services 
Act based on statewide or local drought conditions; and (2) During a water shortage 
emergency condition declared by the governing body of a public water supply. 
 
A coalition of environmental organizations raised a number of objections to AB 869, 
including that the legislation would restrict the authority of the State Water Board to 
require water conservation during designated drought emergencies, handcuffing the 
State’s response to future drought; and that the legislation would “create a massive 
loophole in future water efficiency targets by exempting both potable and non-potable 
recycled water from long-term water use efficiency targets.” The consultant to the Senate 
Natural Resources & Water Committee, in his analysis of the bill, raised similar arguments 
against passage of the bill. 
 
AB 869 stalled in the Senate Natural Resources & Water Committee, but remains eligible 
for consideration next year. The treatment of recycled water, however, is likely to be 
addressed in other legislation relating to the calculation of new urban water use targets. 
 
 
 
 



8 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Urban Water Conservation and Water Use Efficiency 
 
Several Assembly members introduced legislation early this year to implement statutory 
changes based on the public review draft of “Making Water Conservation a Way of Life” 
released in November 2016. Assembly Member Laura Friedman (D-Glendale) authored 
AB 1667, AB 1668 and AB 1669; Assembly Member Rubio authored AB 968 and AB 
1654; and Assembly Member Shirley Weber (D-San Diego) authored AB 1323. The Rubio 
legislation was the product of several months of work on the part of ACWA and its member 
agencies; Reeb Government Relations participated in the negotiations and drafting effort. 
The Friedman legislation reflected elements of the Brown Administration budget trailer 
bill. The Weber bill, sponsored by San Diego County Water Authority, took a different path 
forward by calling on the Department of Water Resources to convene a stakeholder 
process to determine steps to continue the pursuit of improved urban water use efficiency 
and report back to the Legislature. ACWA supported the Rubio legislation, which was 
sponsored by Irvine Ranch Water District and Regional Water Authority (Sacramento 
region). The environmental and social justice communities supported the Friedman 
legislation.  
 
During the final weeks of the legislative session, certain provisions of AB 1668 were 
amended into a new bill by Senator Nancy Skinner (D-Berkeley)—SB 606. ACWA and a 
small core group of its members, including Desert Water Agency, opposed unless 
amended AB 1668 and SB 606 at the end of the legislative session. The latter bills were 
the only surviving legislation before the Legislature at that time. The Brown Administration 
actively supported AB 1668 and SB 606 during the latter weeks of the session, as did 
ACWA members like Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency and East Bay Municipal Utility District, among others. AB 1668 and SB 
606 were more closely aligned with provisions of the Administration’s budget trailer bill, 
although certain of the elements of the legislation reflected compromises reached earlier 
in the summer months. 
 
AB 968 would require the department, in consultation with the board, to convene a 
commercial, industrial, and institutional water use efficiency task force by July 1, 2018, to 
recommend appropriate water efficiency measures for various segments of the 
commercial, industrial, and institutional water use sector and would require the task force, 
by December 31, 2019, in consultation with the department and the board, to submit a 
specified report to the Legislature.  
 
AB 968 would require each urban retail water supplier to develop a water efficiency target 
for 2025 in its 2020 urban water management plan and to achieve that target. The bill 
would authorize an urban retail water supplier to adjust and update the water efficiency 
target when the supplier reports its compliance in achieving the water efficiency targets 
and its implementation of the identified performance measures in its 2025 urban water 
management plan. The bill would require each urban retail water supplier to meet its 
adjusted 2025 water efficiency target by December 31, 2025, unless the supplier makes 



9 | P a g e  
 

a certain report to the department. The bill would require the department, by July 1, 2019, 
to provide to urban retail water suppliers in electronic form a database of validated aerial 
imagery and measured irrigable area, and to conduct a statistically valid review of the 
accuracy of the information in the database before providing the database to an urban 
retail water supplier. The bill would extend the deadline for an urban retail water supplier 
to submit its urban water management plan if the department does not release the 
database by July 1, 2019. 
 
AB 1654 would require the update of an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) on or 
before July 1, in years ending in one and 6. The bill would require each urban retail water 
supplier to report annually by June 15 to the Department of Water Resources the status 
of its water supplies for that year and whether the supplies will be adequate to meet 
projected customer demand. The bill would require the urban retail water supplier to 
implement the appropriate responses as described in its water shortage contingency 
analysis if the urban retail water supplier reports that all available water supplies for the 
applicable water year will not be adequate to meet projected customer demand. The bill 
would require the urban retail water supplier to continue to implement the mandatory 
demand reduction measures described in its water shortage contingency analysis until 
certain conditions have changed to the point that the urban retail water supplier finds that 
it is able to meet projected customer demand over the next 12 months without continued 
implementation of the measures.  
 
AB 1654 would require an urban retail water supplier to file a report with DWR by the 15th 
day of each month during a period that the urban retail water supplier is implementing 
mandatory demand reduction measures. AB 1654 would add to the requirements of a 
UWMP a description of how an emergency supply has been established to increase water 
supply reliability during times of shortage and how the supply is in addition to the supplies 
that the agency draws upon during nonshortage times, if an emergency supply is 
identified as an existing or planned source of water available to the urban retail water 
supplier. The bill would require a description of the reliability and vulnerability for 5 
consecutive years consisting of a repeat of the 5 consecutive historic driest years 
experienced by the urban retail water supplier, except as provided, rather than multiple-
dry water years. The bill would specify that distribution system water loss to be included 
in the plan is potable distribution system water loss. The bill would specify that potable 
reuse, recycled water, and desalination are considered fully reliable. Finally, AB 1654 
would prohibit an urban water supplier, during a statewide drought, local drought, or water 
shortage, from being required to reduce its use or reliance on any water supply available 
for its use and identified in its plan or from being required to take additional actions beyond 
those specified in its water shortage contingency analysis for the level of water shortage. 
 
SB 606 would require an urban retail water supplier to calculate an urban water use 
objective no later than July 1, 2022, and by July 1 every year thereafter, and its actual 
urban water use by those same dates. The bill would require an urban retail water supplier 
to submit a report to DWR for these purposes by those dates. The bill would authorize 
the board to issue information orders, written notices, and conservation orders to an urban 
retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water use objective. The bill would 



10 | P a g e  
 

impose civil liability for a violation of an order or regulation issued pursuant to these 
provisions. The bill would also authorize the board to issue a regulation or informational 
order requiring a wholesale water supplier, urban retail water supplier, or distributor of a 
public water supply to provide a monthly report relating to water production, water use, or 
water conservation. 
 
SB 606 would require a UWMP to be updated on or before July 1, in years ending in 6 
and one, incorporating updated and new information from the 5 years preceding the plan 
update. The bill would require each plan to include a simple lay description of information 
to provide a general understanding of the agency’s plan. The bill would require an urban 
water management plan to contain a drought risk assessment that examines water 
shortage risks for a drought lasting the next 5 or more consecutive years. SB 606 also 
would require an urban water supplier to prepare, adopt, and periodically review a water 
shortage contingency plan, and as part of its UWMP. The bill would require a water 
shortage contingency plan to consist of certain elements, including, among other things, 
annual water supply and demand assessment procedures, standard water shortage 
levels, shortage response actions, and communication protocols and procedures. The bill 
would require an urban water supplier to make the water shortage contingency plan 
available to its customers and any city or county within which it provides water supplies 
no later than 30 days after adoption. 
 
SB 606 would require an urban water supplier to conduct an annual water supply and 
demand assessment and submit an annual water shortage assessment report to DWR 
with information for anticipated shortage, triggered shortage response actions, 
compliance and enforcement actions, and communication actions consistent with the 
supplier’s water shortage contingency plan by June 1 of each year. The bill would require 
an urban water supplier to follow, where feasible and appropriate, the procedures and 
implement determined shortage response actions in its water shortage contingency plan. 
 
AB 1668 would require the State Water Board, in coordination with DWR, to adopt long-
term standards for the efficient use of water and performance measures for commercial, 
industrial, and institutional water use on or before June 30, 2021. The bill would require 
the department, in coordination with the board, to conduct necessary studies and 
investigations and make recommendations, no later than October 1, 2020, for purposes 
of these standards and performance measures. AB 1668, until January 1, 2025, would 
establish 55 gallons per capita daily as the standard for indoor residential water use, 
beginning January 1, 2025, would establish 52.5 gallons per capita daily as the standard 
for indoor residential water use, and beginning January 1, 2030, would establish 50 
gallons per capita daily as the standard for indoor residential water use. The bill would 
require the department, in coordination with the board, to conduct necessary studies and 
investigations to jointly recommend to the Legislature a standard for indoor residential 
water use that more appropriately reflects best practices. The bill would impose civil 
liability for a violation of an order or regulation issued pursuant to these provisions. 
 
In the end, AB 1668 was referred to and held in the Senate Rules Committee. SB 606 
was not taken up on the Assembly Floor. There is a debate among lobbyists working in 



11 | P a g e  
 

support and lobbyists working against the two measures at the end of the session as to 
whether either bill had sufficient votes to clear the house in which it sat. Suffice it to say 
that opponents raised enough objections to the bills that floor votes were not taken on AB 
1668 and SB 606. Time could have run out, unrelated legislative debates and battles 
could have spilled over into the water conservation legislation, Democratic legislators 
could have resisted leadership efforts to force yet another controversial vote in the first 
year of the legislative session—no one knows the true answer, but the fact that both bills 
stalled can be likely attributed to all of the above. 
 
Reeb Government Relations is working with other members of the urban water supplier 
opposition to AB 1668 and SB 606 in an effort to identify key issues and again suggest 
amendments to address those issues. The treatment of recycled water, potable reuse 
and desalination investments is one key area. The ability of the State Water Board to 
enforce local suppliers to take certain actions—even to impose civil and criminal penalties 
on their customers—is another. The potential negative effects on water affordability and 
the financial position of urban retail water suppliers is also a primary concern. 
 
The overarching goals of urban retail water suppliers like the Agency are to ensure that 
there are flexible paths forward to comply with new mandates and that local suppliers 
retain decision making authority. Conservation and efficient water use are not the same; 
State agencies, suppliers and the marketplace have been implementing actions that allow 
for more efficient use of water, but mandates to reduce urban water use in the name of 
“conservation” are unnecessary in the minds of many local urban retail water suppliers. 
 
Imposition of a Water Tax on Urban Customers 
 
The California Safe Drinking Water Act requires the State Water Board to administer 
provisions relating to the regulation of drinking water to protect public health. The Human 
Right to Water law declares it to be the established policy of the state that every human 
being has the right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for human 
consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes. 
 
SB 623 by Senator William Monning (D-Carmel) would establish the Safe and Affordable 
Drinking Water Fund in the State Treasury and would provide that moneys in the fund are 
continuously appropriated to the State Water Board. The bill would require the board to 
administer the fund to secure access to safe drinking water for all Californians, while also 
ensuring the long-term sustainability of drinking water service and infrastructure.  
 
SB 623 would impose, until July 1, 2020, a safe and affordable drinking water fee in 
specified amounts on each customer of a public water system, to be administered by  
the state board. Initially generating $100 million annually, the fee would be imposed as 
follows: 
 

 $0.95 per month for customers with water meters up to one inch or customers 
without water meters; 



12 | P a g e  
 

 $4 per month for customers with water meters greater than one and up to two 
inches; 

 $6 per month for customers with water meters greater than two and up to four 
inches; and, 

 $10 per month for customers with water meters greater than four inches. 
 
The bill would exempt from the fee a customer that self-certifies under penalty of perjury 
the customer’s satisfaction of specified criteria relating to income. This provision could 
provide relief from the fee for about 34 percent of California households. The bill also 
would exempt fire flow or nonpotable uses such as recycled water from the water fee and 
require a customer with multiple meters or connections at a single address to pay a single 
monthly fee based on the largest metered connection. By expanding the crime of perjury, 
the bill would impose a state-mandated local program. The bill would require, beginning 
July 1, 2020, the state board to annually determine the amounts of the safe and affordable 
drinking water fee not to exceed the amounts imposed until July 1, 2020, and not to 
exceed the anticipated funding need in the most recent assessment of funding need 
adopted by the state board pursuant to the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund 
provisions.  
 
SB 623 would require a public water system to collect the fee and to remit these moneys 
to the state board to be deposited into the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund. The 
bill would require the state board annually to prepare and make available a report of 
expenditures of the fund and to adopt annually, after a public hearing, an assessment of 
funding need that estimates the anticipated funding needed for the next fiscal year to 
achieve the purposes of the fund. 
 
The Agency joined other members of the Association of California Water Agencies in 
opposition to the proposed water fee, which would constitute a tax on customers of the 
Agency based on provisions of the California Constitution. The opposition coalition 
argued that it would not be sound public policy to tax a commodity for which the State of 
California has determined to be a human right. Further, adding a tax on water works 
against keeping water affordable for all Californians. 
 
A combination of factors lead to SB 623 being held as a 2-year bill. First, the opposition 
from the public water systems and others was effective. Second, legislators earlier in the 
year had been asked to approve an increase in the gasoline tax and vehicle registration 
fees, as well as reauthorize the State’s cap-and-trade auction program. The gas tax 
legislation is expected to increase state revenues by $5.2 billion annually, while the cap-
and-trade extension will raise “unknown significant revenue, likely in the hundreds of 
millions of dollars annually” according to the Senate Appropriations Committee analysis. 
Finally, the water tax provisions of SB 623 were added to the legislation immediately prior 
to the final hearing on the legislation in the Assembly Appropriations Committee, having 
earlier cleared two Assembly policy committees without the provisions in the legislation. 
 
 
 



13 | P a g e  
 

Environmental Review Continuing Education 
 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires a lead agency to prepare, or 
cause to be prepared, and certify the completion of an environmental impact report on a 
project that it proposes to carry out or approve that may have a significant effect on the 
environment. SB 771 by Senator Kevin De León (D-Los Angeles) would establish a 
continuing education requirement for employees of public agencies who have primary 
responsibility to administer the act. 
 
The Agency held an “oppose unless amended” position on SB 771, arguing that the 
legislation would impose a state-mandated local program, but would force local water 
agencies to pay for the cost of compliance from water system revenue. As introduced, 
SB 771 was nebulous as to identification of local agency employees that would fall under 
its mandate. The Agency asked for amendments to limit its scope to legal counsel and 
where the local agency does not employ legal counsel, to the chief executive. The 
preparation of an EIR is usually contracted out to a professional environmental services 
company whose work is overseen by local agency staff. It would be a costly undertaking 
for local agency employees in engineering, operations, legal and other departments to 
attend continuing education courses. These costs would be borne by water system 
ratepayers and would be reflected in higher water rates, which will erode the affordability 
of water. 
 
SB 771 was amended in the Assembly to limit its application to “at least one” employee 
of a local agency who has been assigned the primary responsibility to administer CEQA. 
The Agency removed its opposition to the bill. SB 771 was later placed on the Assembly 
Inactive File, which will enable the Legislature to consider the bill next year. 
 
 
Desert Water Agency an Effective Advocate on Behalf of its Taxpayers and 
Customers 
 
This completes the 13th year of a commitment on the part of the Desert Water Agency 
Board of Directors to aggressively pursue advocacy efforts in the State Capitol relying on 
Reeb Government Relations to be its voice. The Agency remains active in opposing 
legislation that would impose new costs on the Agency and its taxpayers and ratepayers 
without providing measurable benefits. The Agency alternatively supports legislation that 
will assist it in providing more cost-effective or efficient services. 
 
 
Aside from outcomes related to the Agency’s advocacy efforts in the Legislature this year, 
our firm assisted the Agency to: 
 

 Strengthen relationships with its legislative delegation in the State Capitol—
Senator Jeff Stone, Assembly Member Chad Mayes and Assembly Member 
Eduardo Garcia. All three provided open access to the Agency and Reeb 



14 | P a g e  
 

Government Relations and provided careful consideration of Agency positions on 
the state budget and legislation. 

 Navigate the requirements of SGMA as it pertains to formation of a groundwater 
sustainability agency and implementation of the Act, engaging members of the 
Legislature and DWR to ensure that the law and regulations were being 
implemented in an even-handed and thoughtful manner. 

 Amplify the Agency’s voice in the Association of California Water Agencies, Public 
Works Coalition and WateReuse Association, California Chapter, through the 
active involvement of Agency staff and Reeb Government Relations. 

 
Next year, our primary focus will include: 
 

 Continue to work with ACWA and ACWA member agencies in the opposition 
coalition on AB 1668 and SB 606 in an effort to craft legislation that achieves 
increased efficiency in the urban water use sector without costly or burdensome 
new state mandates. 

 
 Continue to work with ACWA and ACWA member agencies in the opposition 

coalition on SB 623 and the anticipated introduction of legislation to implement a 
Low-Income Rate Assistance (LIRA) program (AB 401--Dodd). 

 
 Monitor legislation impacting employers and employment law. Senator Henry 

Stern (D-Canoga Park) plans to introduce legislation that would help protect 
workers from employer retribution for exercising their right to free speech, saying 
that the state should be a sanctuary for free speech, including the kind that some 
might find offensive. 

 
Employment Law Changes for 2018 that could Impact the Agency 
 
AB 168 (Chapter 688, Statutes of 2017) adds a new section to the Labor Code, Section 
432.3, which applies to all employers, including state and local government employers. 
AB 168 will prohibit an employer from inquiring about or relying upon salary history 
information of an applicant as a factor in determining whether to offer employment or an 
applicant’s salary. The law also requires an employer to provide applicants with the pay 
scale for a position, upon “reasonable” request. The law is intended to help offset gender-
based pay inequities and follows on the heels of recent California legislation making it 
more difficult for employers to justify gender-based pay disparities, including California’s 
Fair Pay Act, enacted in 2015 and amended in 2016 to cover race and ethnicity. The new 
law covers information regarding both prior compensation and benefits. It prohibits 
inquiries directed to both applicants and agents, such as employment agencies. Section 
432.3 will not apply to salary history information disclosable to the public pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 
7 of Title 1 of the Government Code). 
 
Nothing in the new section of law prohibits an applicant from voluntarily and without 
prompting disclosing salary history information to a prospective employer. If an applicant 



15 | P a g e  
 

voluntarily and without prompting discloses salary history information to a prospective 
employer, nothing prohibits that employer from considering or relying on that voluntarily 
disclosed salary history information in determining the salary for that applicant. 
 
AB 1008 (Chapter 789, Statutes of 2017) will prohibit an employer with five or more 
employees from inquiring into or relying upon an applicant’s criminal conviction history 
until an applicant has received a conditional offer of employment. The new law will prohibit 
an employer from including, on any pre-offer application form, any question regarding 
criminal conviction history. The “Ban the Box” law is intended to reduce barriers to 
employment for people with conviction histories and to decrease unemployment in 
communities with concentrated numbers of people with conviction histories. 
 
AB 1008 also: 
 

 Limits the information an employer can consider or distribute as part of a criminal 
history background check. Specifically, employers may not consider arrests not 
resulting in conviction, with limited exceptions, or referral to or participation in a 
pretrial or post-trial diversion program. 

 Requires employers that rely on conviction history in denying an applicant 
employment to conduct an individualized assessment of whether the conviction 
history has a direct and adverse relationship with the specific duties of the job. 
Employers must consider as part of this process: (1) the nature and gravity of the 
offense; (2) the time that has passed; and (3) the nature of the position sought. 

 Requires employers to provide the following information to any applicant denied 
an offer based on conviction history: (1) the conviction the employer relied upon; 
(2) notice of the applicant’s right to challenge the accuracy of the information 
and/or provide evidence of rehabilitation or mitigating circumstances; and (3) a 
copy of the criminal history report. 

 
AB 450 (Chapter 492, Statutes of 2017) [Government Code sections 7285.1, 7285.2, and 
7285.3] will prohibit an employer from voluntarily permitting a federal immigration agent 
from searching nonpublic areas of a worksite without a judicial warrant. It also prohibits 
employers from permitting a federal immigration agent from accessing or reviewing 
personnel records without a subpoena, court order, or, in the case of I-9 Employment 
Eligibility Verification forms, a Notice of Inspection. 
 
The law will require an employer to provide current employees notice of any inspection of 
I-9 Employment Eligibility Verification forms or other employment records within 72 hours 
of receiving a Notice of Inspection from a federal immigration agency. Employers must 
provide this notice by posting a notice in the workplace, in the language the employer 
normally uses to communicate with its employees, and by notifying any authorized 
employee representative, such as a union. The new law also requires employers to 
provide a copy of any Federal Notice of Inspection to employees upon request.  
 
AB 450 [Labor Code Section 90.2] will require employers to provide employees a copy of 
two types of notices from a federal immigration agency: inspection results and any 



16 | P a g e  
 

employee or employer obligations resulting from such inspection. The notice must be 
provided to each current affected employee and any collective bargaining representative 
within 72 hours of receipt. Finally, the bill also adds a new Labor Code Section 1019.2, 
which will prohibit an employer from re-verifying a current employee’s employment 
eligibility at a time or in a manner not required by federal law. 
 
SB 396 (Chapter 858, Statutes of 2017) will change the content of many California 
employers’ sexual harassment training seminars. The bill requires that as a component 
of such training, employers must also deliver training on harassment based on gender 
identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation.  
 
Employers with 50 or more employees are required to provide no less than two hours of 
training regarding sexual harassment to all supervisory and management employees 
every two years, under existing law. SB 396 will now mandate that the two hours of 
required training include elements covering these new and additional topics. The new law 
necessitates that the training “include practical examples inclusive of harassment based 
on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation, and shall be presented by 
trainers or educators with knowledge and expertise in those areas.” 
 
Further, SB 396 requires employers to prominently display a poster regarding 
transgender rights in an accessible location in the office or workplace. Employer posters 
will be developed by the Department of Fair Employment and Housing. [SB 396 amends 
sections 12950 and 12950.1 of the Government Code, and sections 14005 and 14012 of 
the Unemployment Insurance Code] 



































































X:\Kim\Public Information (PI)\PI 2017\PI Activities 2017\10-17 OC Activities.doc 

8-B 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 

OUTREACH & CONSERVATION 

ACTIVITIES 
 

October 2017 
Activities: 

   
10/3  Ashley Metzger was on a live KESQ segment discussing DWA history. 

   10/4-6  Ashley Metzger attended Water Smart Innovations conference. 
   10/6  Vicki Petek manned a DWA conservation station at Home Depot and Lowe’s. 
   10/7  Staff set up water station & water trailer at Desert Glow Fest in Cathedral City. 

 
10/11  President Cioffi, Director Ewing & Ashley Metzger attended the first Coffee with 

DWA. 
 

10/12  Ashley Metzger attended and made announcements at ONE-PS. 
 

10/12  Vicki Petek manned a DWA conservation station at Home Depot and Lowe’s. 
   10/12  Ashley Metzger was on a live KESQ segment regarding the nozzle rebate program 

changes. 
 

10/13  Staff manned a booth at the annual Mizell Senior Expo. 
 

10/17  DWA hosted a blood drive for staff and community members. 
 

10/17  Staff manned a booth and the water trailer at the Taste of Palm Springs/ Business 
Expo. 

 
10/19  Ashley Metzger was on a live KESQ segment discussing Desert Garden Day. 

 
10/19  President Cioffi, Director Bloomer & Ashley Metzger met with County Supervisor 

Marion Ashley. 
 

10/20  Ashley Metzger attended Leadership Coachella Valley. 
 
      10/21  Staff set up the water trailer at the Desert AIDS Walk. 
 

10/25  Staff attended CVEP’s annual Economic Summit. 
 

10/25-26  Vicki Petek manned a DWA conservation station at Home Depot and Lowe’s. 
 

10/27  Staff filled water bottles for the Tram Road Challenge. 
   

10/28  Director Bloomer and staff handed out water at the Tram Road Challenge. 
 

10/28  Ashley Metzger worked the CV Water Counts booth at Desert Garden Day. 
 

10/29  Ashley Metzger manned the DWA booth at the Palm Springs Animal Shelter’s 
Oktoberpets event. 

 

Public Information Releases/eBlasts:     

 
October 2-31:  Fall newsletter – bill insert, social media, website 
 
October 13:  DWA hosts a blood drive – press release, website, social media 

 
October 31:  2017 top year for water replenishment – press release, website, social media 
 



Language Sessions % Sessions

1. en-us 4,018 95.96%

2. en-ca 40 0.96%

3. en-gb 33 0.79%

4. zh-cn 15 0.36%

5. ko 10 0.24%

6. c 7 0.17%

7. es-419 6 0.14%

8. fr-fr 6 0.14%

9. de-de 5 0.12%

10. en-au 5 0.12%

Audience Overview

Oct 1, 2017 - Oct 31, 2017

Overview

 Sessions

… Oct 8 Oct 15 Oct 22 Oct 29

150150

300300

Sessions

4,187
Users

3,256
Pageviews

9,699

Pages / Session

2.32
Avg. Session Duration

00:02:04
Bounce Rate

39.77%

% New Sessions

62.29%

New Visitor Returning Visitor

37.7%

62.3%

© 2017 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

DWA main site

All Web Site Data GO TO REPORT

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/visitors-overview/a90622633w134355996p138504838/?_u.date00=20171001&_u.date01=20171031/


 
 

 

     

 

Desert Water Agency  
Facebook Analytics 

October 2017 

 



 

   



 
 



 

Desert Water Agency  
Twitter Analytics 

 October 2017 
 

 

 

 


	110717 Board Agenda
	Item 2 101717 Board Minutes
	Item 3 110717 GM report
	Item 6A 110717 USGS 2017-2018 staff report
	Item 6B 110717 ACWA Voting Rep staff report
	110717 ACWA General Session Notification Memo_Fall 2017.pdf
	Election of President/Vice President
	Proposed Amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws
	Article 7 – Standing Committees
	Article 9 – Meeting of Members
	Webinar on Proposed Amendments to Bylaws


	Membership Voting Process

	110717 ACWA Proxy Designation Form_General Session Fall 2017.pdf
	WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2017 AT 1:20PM THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2017 AT 1:20PM (IF NEEDED)


	Item 6C 110717 Sites Project staff report
	Item 7A 110717 SWC_ MEMO OCTOBER 19, 2017 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c1
	Item 7C Legislative Report Reeb
	Item 8A 110717 O&C Media
	Item 8B 110717 O&C Activities

	MEMBER AGENCYS NAME: Desert Water Agency
	AGENCYS TELEPHONE No: (760) 323-4971
	MEMBER AGENCYS AUTHORIZING REPRESENTATIVE: James Cioffi
	SIGNATURE: 
	DELEGATES NAME:  
	SIGNATURE_2: 
	DELEGATES EMAIL:  
	DELEGATES TELEPHONE No: (760) 323-4971
	DELEGATE'S AFFILIATIONS: 
	DATE: 11/7/17


